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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Comparision of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2078/79

RS.in'000
As Per Variance
Unaudited As Per Audited
S.No. Particulars Financial Financial Reason For Variance
Statement Statement In Amount In %
1]|Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1 to 1.7) 2,405,455 2,340,802 64,653 2.69%
1.1|Paid up Capital 70,000 70,000 0 0.00%
1.2|Reserve and Surplus 183,702, 135,930 41772 26.01%|Provision of LLP , service charge refundable
1.3|Debenture and Bond 0) 0 0
1.4|Borrowings 1,163,674 1,163,674 0 0.00%
1.5|Deposits (a+b) 824,536, 824,536 0 0.00%
a. Members 824,536, 824,536 0 0.00%
b. Public 0) 0 0
1.6|Income Tax Liability 18,418 4,370 14,048 76.27%|Decrease of service charge income
1.7|Other Liability 145,126] 142,292 2,834 1.95%|Adjustment of insurance premium payable
2|Total Asstes(2.1 to 2.7) 2,405,455 2,340,802 64,653 2.69%
2.1|Cash and Bank Balance 79,005 79,005 0 0.00%
2.2|Money at Call and Short Notice
2.3|Investments 57 57 0 0.00%
2.4|Loan and Advances 2,268,291 2,211,276 57,014 2.51%
2.5|Fixed Assets 20,842 8,304 12,538 60.16%|Net of accumulated depreciation fund
2.6|Non Banking Assets 0 0 0
2.7]Other Assets 37,261 42,161 4,899 -13.15%|Adjustment of deferred tax, advance tax
3|Profit and Loss Account
3.1|Interest Income 325,364 325,308 56 0.02%]Adjustment of bank interest income with advance tax
3.2|Interest Expenses 170,147 170,267 -121 -0.07%|Adjustment of borrowing costs
ANet Interest Income(3.1-3.2) 155,217 155,040 177 0.11%
3.3|Fees, Commission and Discount 0 0
3.4|Other Operating Income 38,945 28,635 10,311 26.47%|Adjustment of service charge
3.5|Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 0 0 0
B.Total Operation Income(A.+3.3+3.4+3.5) 194,162 183,675 10,487 5.40%
3.6Staff Expenses 81,586] 80,432 1,154 1.41%|Adjustment of fuel exp with operating expenses
3.7|Other Operating Expanses 23,640 24910 -1,270 -5.37%|Adjustment with staff expenses
C.Operating Profit Before Provision(B.-3.6-3.7) 88,937 78,334 10,603 11.92%
3.8Provision for possible Lossess 22,645 78,418 -55,773 -246.30%|Provision of LLP as per NRB directives
D.Operating Profit(C-3.8) 66,292 -84 66,376 100.13%
3.9]Non Operating Income /Expenses (Net) 0 0 0
3.10]Write Back Of Provision For Possible Loss 1,242 0 1,242 100.00%
E.Profit from Regular Acitivities(D+3.9+3.10) 67,534 -84 67,618 100.12%
3.11|Extraordinary Income /Expenses (Net) 0
F.Profit before Bonus and Taxes(E.+3.11) 67,534] -84 67,618 100.12%
3.12|Provisoin for staff Bonus 6,139 0 6,139 100.00%|Provisional expense
3.13|Provision for Tax 18,418 4,666 13,753 74.67%|Provision of current tax, deferred tax
G.Net Profit /Loss(F.-3.12-3.13) 42,976 -4,750 47,725 111.05%
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
As at 4th Quarter (32/03/2079) of the Fiscal Year 2078/79
Rs. In '000
S. No. |Particulars This Previous Corresponding
Quarter Quarter Previous Year
Ending Ending Quarter Ending
1 Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1 to 1.7) 2,405,455.43 2,388,436.76 2,155,165.24
1.1 Paid up Capital 70,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
1.2 Reserve and Surplus 183,701.70 182,345.34 141,363.11
1.3 Debenture and Bond
1.4 Borrowings 1,163,673.76 1,186,789.33 1,087,910.90
1.5 Deposits (a+b) 824,535.98 785,621.33 618,999.44
a. Member 824,535.98 785,621.33 618,999.44
b. Public
1.6 Income Tax Liability 18,418.23 17,363.37 27,454.63
1.7 Other Liabilities 145,125.76 146,317.39 209,437.15
2 Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7) 2,405,455.43 2,388,436.76 2,155,165.24
2.1 Cash and Bank Balance 10,168.57 11,752.90 274,764.89
2.2 Money at Call and Short Notice 68,836.29 13,022.83 -
2.3 Investments 56.60 56.60 56.60
2.4 Loans and Advances 2,268,290.83 2,308,121.79 1,824,964.52
2.5 Fixed Assets 20,841.86 20,101.90 9,066.79
2.6 Non Banking Assets - - -
2.7 Other Assets 37,261.28 35,380.74 46,312.43
Up to this Up to Previous | Up to Corresponding
3 Profit and Loss Account Quarter Quarter Previous Year
Quarter
3.1 Interest Income 325,364.11 231,146.73 244 .614.14
3.2 Interest Expense 170,146.91 114,446.48 95,087.28
A. Net Interest Income (3.1 - 3.2) 155,217.20 116,700.25 149,526.86
3.3 Fees, Commission and Discount - - -
3.4 Other Operating Income 38,945.19 30,218.05 35,293.65
3.5 Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) - - -
B. Total Operating Income (A+3.3+3.4+3.5) 194,162.39 146,918.30 184,820.51
3.6 Staff Expenses 81,585.79 56,200.09 66,254.33
3.7 Other Operating Expenses 23,639.97 16,267.89 17,697.80
C. Operating Profit Before Provision (B-3.6-3.7) 88,936.63 74,450.32 100,868.39
3.8 [Provision for Possible Losses 22,644.67 10,901.13 16,344.91
D. Operating Profit (C - 3.8) 66,291.96 63,549.19 84,523.48
3.9 Non Operating Income/ Expenses (Net) - - -
3.10 Write Back of Provision for Possible Loss 1,241.55 116.51 18,856.29
E. Profit from Regula Activities (D+3.9+3.10) 67,533.51 63,665.70 103,379.76
3.11[Extraordionary Income/ Expenses (Net) - - -
F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E+3.11) 67,533.51 63,665.70 103,379.76
3.12 Provision for Staff Bonus 6,139.41 5,787.79 10,337.98
3.13 Provision for Tax 18,418.23 17,363.37 27,302.25
G. Net Profit/ Loss (F-3.12-3.13) 42,975.87 40,514.53 65,739.54

At the End of
Corresponding

4 Ratios At the End of At the End of Previous
This Quarter | Previous Quarter Year Quarter
4.1 Capital Fund to RWA 10.08% 9.93% 9.39%
4.2 Non Performing Loan (NPL) to Total Loan 2.11% 2.18% 2.16%
4.3 Total Loan Loss Provision to Total NPL 186.75% 158.36% 196.92%
4.4 Cost of Funds 13.35% 12.20% 6.10%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHRIJANSHIL EAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSHA LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shrijanshili aghubittaBittiyaSanstha
Ltd (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Institution”ywhich comprise the Statement of Financial
Position as at Asar 32,-2079 (July 16, 2022), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income}, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended on that dafe, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
subject to the effect of matters mentioned in Basis of Qualified Opinion section, the aforesaid financiai
statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Financial Institution as
at Asar 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) and ifs financial performance, changes in equity, cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and comply with Companies Act, 2063 and
Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Basis of Quafified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibiliies under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Financial Instituion in accordance with the Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and we have fulfilied
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opirion on the financial statements.

On review of the financial statements of the institution, we noted following major issues which are not

rectified by the management of the financial institution. Considesing the effects of these issues, we
consider to issue qualified audit report.

1. Under licensing condition no. 12 of the NRB letter dated 2075/11/03 and Company Directives,

2072 of the Office of Company Registrar, Shrijanshill aghubittaBittivaSanstha Ltd. shouid make
divestment of promoter share investment Rs. 46700000 of the Shrijana Community
Development Centre, Siraha.

2. The financial institution should make divestment of share investment Rs. 41,300 in RMDC

LaghubittaBittiyaSanstha Ltd. and Rs. ,300 in Century Commercial Bank Ltd. to comply with the
NRB Directive. :
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3. The financial institution should deposit staff gratuity with Social Security Fund under the Labour
Act, 2074.

Key Audit Matters )

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significant in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. Those matiers were addressed in the
context of the audit of the financiat statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determiried the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. The financial institution needs to carry out system audit as required under NRB Directive.

2. The financial institution needs to carry out physical verification of fixed assets to reconcile with the
fixed assets register and appropriate action should be taken to update the register.

3. Theﬁsmwiaﬁmﬁ'mﬁonneedstohnnﬂsBoardaEDimctorsaspefﬁsAﬂEclesofAssociaﬁon.

Information Other than the Financiafl Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Financial Institution’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Report, Report of the
Board of Directors and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

!n conngdion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements of our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

if, bas?ed Of Ehe work we tawe performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management i_=s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management

dgtermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud and

T
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In preparing the financiaf statements, management is responsible for assessing the Financial
Institution’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related tc going
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Financial Institution or to cease the operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Financial Institution's financial reperiing
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they coufd reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionat skepticism: through the audit.

We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and pesform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide the basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may invoive coflusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding 04 internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Financiaf Institufion’s internal control.

. Evgiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained whether a materiat on uncertainty exists related io
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial Institution’s ability to continue
as a going concerm. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our g@or’s repert to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence abtacned up fo the date of auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Financiaf Insfitution to cease to i a going concerm. ===

s
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« Evaluate the overalf presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inci:_:ding thg
_disclosures, and whether the financial staterments represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business
activities within the Financial Institution to express an opinion in the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, suspension and performance of the Financial Institution audit. We
remain solely responsible for our auit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planngd
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aisnpswideﬁmechargedwﬁhgovemancewﬁhamnentmatwehave complied with the
relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our examination, we would fike to further report that:

i.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for
the purpose for our audit.

i. The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows and attached Schedules dealt with by this
report are prepared as per procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and agree
with the boolks of account maintained by the Financiat Institution.

iii. The proper books of accounts as required by the law have been maintained by the Financial
Institution.

iv.  During our examination of the books of account of the Financial Institution, we have not come
across any cases where any office holder of the Financial Institution has acted contrary to the
provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Financial Institution.

v.  The Financial Institution has been functioning as per the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

vi.  We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based o our sample examination
of the books.

For, HK.S.D. Associates ( )
Chartered Accountants )

Ka Nepal CA_ Suraj Kumar Phakal
UDIN: gzﬁff}cm'ﬂéwt’ﬁ e
3@#‘ yth, PED ‘
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As on 32 Asar 2079 (As at 16 July 2022)

As at As at As at

Note 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1 66,771,935 245,098,347 114,983,362
Statutory Balances & Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 12,232,926 29,666,542 22,651,882
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 2,233,364,727 1,843,125,662 1,294,015,819
Investment Securities 4.8 374,093 611,572 312,616
Current Tax Assets 49 21,961,220 32,440,605 8,421,262
Investment Property 4.10 - - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 8,950,387 9,234,409 8,589,142
Goodwill and Intangible assets 412 10,643,612 13,602,547 16,295,903
Deferred Tax Assets 413 1,448,002 1,565,933 -
Other Assets 4.14 13,885,735 7,848,598 8,073,551
Total Assets 2,369,632,635 2,183,194,215 1,473,343,538

As at As at As at

Note 16 July 2019 16 July 2018 15 July 2017
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 1,163,673,758 1,087,910,900 527,913,666
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - - -
Deposits from Customers 418 824,535,981 618,999,445 599,822,949
Borrowing 419 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 4,370,479 27,454,632 -
Provisions 4.20 - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 413 - - 4,046,132
Other Liabilities 4.21 154,214,389 223,880,925 173,347,654
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total liabilities 2,146,794,607 1,958,245,901 1,305,130,401
Equity
Share capital 4.24 70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
Share premium - - -
Retained earnings 37,435,948 40,970,711 (11,084,456)
Reserves 4.25 115,402,080 113,977,603 109,297,594
Total equity 222,838,028 224,948,314 168,213,138

Total Liabilities and Equity

2,369,632,635

2,183,194,215

1,473,343,538

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment
Net assets value per share
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079 (As at 16 July 2022)

Note
Current Year Previous Year

Interest Income 427 328,696,861 231,413,264
Interest Expense 4.28 171,909,634 96,599,160
Net Interest Income 156,787,228 134,814,105
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 28,634,566 35,293,653
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 18,633 80,038
Net Fee and Commission Income 28,615,933 35,213,615
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 185,403,161 170,027,720
Net Trading Income 4.31 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 185,403,161 170,027,720
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 78,417,579 (2,511,377)
Net Operating Income 106,985,582 172,539,097
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 80,469,916 76,750,554
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 15,338,538 10,238,960
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 7,868,779 6,540,541
Operating Profit 3,308,349 79,009,041
Non Operating Income 4.37 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -
Profit before Income Tax 3,308,349 79,009,041
Income Tax Expense 4.39

Current Tax 4,379,631 27,454,632

Deferred Tax 112,370 (5,701,752)
Profit for the year (1,183,652) 57,256,161
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Financial Institution (1,183,652) 57,256,161
Profit for the year (1,183,652) # 57,256,161
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (1.69) 81.79
Diluted earnings per share (1.69) 81.79

As per our report of even date

‘
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079 (As at 16 July 2022)

Note

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on Revaluation

Actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) ltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

e arftfe ufddcor

(1,183,652) 57,256,161
(237,479) 298,956

(5,561) (89,687)
(243,040) 209,269
(243,040) 209,269
(1,426,692) 57,465,430

As per our report of even date




Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Current Year Previous Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 325,346,076 244,772,397
Fees and other income received 28,634,566 35,293,653

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

Income taxes paid

(171,909,634)
(18,633)
(90,819,811)
(15,338,538)
75,894,027

(465,305,859)
4,442,248

(96,599,160)
(80,038)
(66,412,578)
(10,238,960)
106,735,314

(559,957,597)
(23,794,390)

(460,863,611)

205,536,536

(59,316,641)

(583,751,987)

19,176,496

40,195,294

146,219,895
(238,749,689)

(27,463,784)

59,371,790
(417,644,883)

Net cash flow from operating activities

(266,213,472)

(417,644,883)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(2,181,704)

(2,444,118)

(2,856,981)

(1,635,470)

Net cash used in investing activities

(4,625,821)

(4,492,452)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

75,762,858

(683,593)

559,997,233

(730,254)

Net cash from financing activities

75,079,265

559,266,980

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2078
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

(195,760,028)
274,764,889

137,129,645
137,635,244

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2079

79,004,861

274,764,889

iren arfde ufddaGer

As per our report of even date
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 32 Asar 2079

1. Reporting Entity

Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (Shrijanshil or “the Institution™) is a public limited
company, established under the Companies Act, 2063 (Registration No. 201330/075/076 dated
2075/07/07). It has obtained license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) as a “D” Class Financial institution
(License No. “D”/91/075/076 dated 2075/11/03) and has been operating microfinance services from
2075/12/01.

Head office of the Institution is located at Golbazar-07, Choharwa, Siraha, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are
listed with Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (Listing Date Dec 13, 2022) and its stock symbol is “SHLB”.

The Institution provides microfinance services such as loans and deposits to group members of low-
income families in Nepal.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Institution have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting, except the
cash flow information which is prepared on cash basis under direct method, in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal
and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1  Statement of Compliance

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format as per Nepal Rastra Bank
Directives for Micro-Finance Institutions.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Institution has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRSs with effect from
fiscal year 2078/79. To comply the NFRS provisions following dates have been considered, in terms of
first-time adoption.

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Opening NFRS SFP* date 1 Shrawan 2077 16 July 2020
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Asar 2078 15 July 2021
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2077-31 Asar 2078 16 July 2020 -15 July 2021
First NFRS SFP* Date 32 Ashar 2079 16 July 2022
First NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2078- 32 Asar 2079 16 July 2021-15 July 2022

*SFP- Statement of Financial Position
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2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Institution’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Institution, under NFRSs, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, it is required to make judgments in respect of items
where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially
affect the financial statements.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial
statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRSs require the Institution to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial
statements. The Institution applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and
such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

2.4.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Institution is
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this
assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and
future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

The Institution has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs) as at 16 July 2020 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets and
liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRSs, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities
which are not permitted by NFRSs, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRSs as required
by NFRSs, and applying NFRSs in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

2.6 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB- after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The standards and interpretations that are
issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Institution’s financial statements are
disclosed below. The Financial Institution intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they
become effective.

2.7 New standards and interpretations not adopted

The updates on IFRS subsequent to 2018 become applicable when the ASB incorporates them within the
NFRS. The Financial Institution has not adopted those standards.

2.8 Discounting
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2.9

3.1

3.2

When the realization of asset and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the financial
institution considers discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various
internal and external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the
cash flows of the entity.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and/or it is impracticable to develop the
information, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective
sections.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
e financial instruments through fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

e financial instruments through fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at fair
value.

e investment property is measured at fair value

e the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, money at call & short notice and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition dates
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Finance in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial
Position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. It
initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/subordinated liabilities issued on the
date that they are originated, which is the date that the Institution becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at
which the Institution commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Generally, purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognized on trade date at which the Institution commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

1RIANDU
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II.

Classification
Financial Assets

The financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of its
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

The financial assets are classified under three categories as required under NFRS 9, as follows;
¢ Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR”) method less
impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is
recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss.

e Financial asset measured at fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest,
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are
recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI).

Financial Liabilities

The Financial Institution classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

e Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

e Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

IRIANDU
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C. Measurement
i. Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii. Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost
based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability classified as
measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectability.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

3.3.1 De-recognition

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained
by the Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of
the asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Institution neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, it continues to recognize the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in
the value of the transferred asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.




3.3.2
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Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Institution. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Institution uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At each reporting date, the Management analyzes the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Institution's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Institution has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Impairment

At each reporting date the Institution assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the
asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Institution considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
e  Whether the counter party is in default of principal or interest payments.

e  When a counter party files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

e Where the Institution initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.
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e  Where the Institution consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

e Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific
individual financial assets.

The Institution considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and
advances and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred
but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade
receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost
As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to
customers as well as held—to—maturity investments are impaired, and impairment losses are recognized,
only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

All Loans and advances to customers are assessed for individual impairment test. The recoverable value
of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past
experience of the Finance.

The Institution assumes all Loans and advances to be individually significant and hence collective
impairment has not been provided.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment reserve) in other
comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. If a future write—off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the ’Income Statement’.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning
level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances
including bills purchased at 1% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft
and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

The Institution has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as
per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NAS
39.

Trading Assets

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Institution acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that
is managed together for short-term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All
changes in fair value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss.

The Institution does not have any trading asset as on reporting date.
Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to
fair value at each reporting date.

The Institution does not have any derivative instrument during the reporting period.
Loan to staffs

The Financial Institution has a policy of providing loans to its employees at below-market interest rate.
This asset is bifurcated and recognized as two different elements viz. a prepaid employee benefit and a
loan asset. Initially fair value of employee loan is determined by discounting the future loan repayments
using a market rate of interest. This fair value is recognized as loan asset and any excess of the principal
loan amount over the fair value is recognized as deferred employee expenditure. Deferred employee
expenditure is amortized over the loan tenor with the amortization amount recognized as interest income
and a corresponding finance expense within the personnel expense.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at
cost, if, and only if:

e it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

e the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

e the cost of materials and direct labor;

e any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use;




e when the Institution has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

e C(Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Institution adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the
property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the
reporting date. The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the institution. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.
Transition to NFRS

The Institution has elected to fair value its property, plant and equipment recognized as at 15 July 2020
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

Capital Work in Progress

Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in
progress.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using Diminishing Balance Method as per management judgement
considering less than 10% residual value of each group of assets at the end of estimated useful life as
follows:

. Depreciation Estimated Residual
Grou Estimated Useful Diminishine Bal Value at the End of
p Life (Diminishing Balance | jqefy Life (% of initial
Method) cost of assets)
Furniture, Office
) 10 Years 25 % 7.50 %
Equipment & Computers
Vehicle 15 Years 20 % 4.40%
Office Machinery 15 Years 15 % 8.74 %
Leasehold Lease Period

De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition
of an item of property and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized
(unless on a sale & lease back).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
any.




3.8 Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the
probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Institution, and are
amortized on the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer
software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down
immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date
that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods
is five years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

3.9 Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired
by the Institution as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Institution holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security over
the loans and advances.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii)
they are available-for-sale in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

The Institution does not have any Non-Current Assets Held for Sale as on reporting date.

3.10 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.
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3.11

3.12

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration
of dividends.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Financial Institution as at the reporting date
which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits

The Institution accepts deposits from its customers under account, current and term deposit accounts
which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions are
recorded on the Institution's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Institution
and represents the amount owed by the Institution to the customer.

Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Institution. Deposits, debt securities
issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except where the Institution designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The Institution has
not issued any debt securities.

Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the
claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Institution does not have any of such
subordinated liabilities.

Provisions
The Institution recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, it has a present constructive or legal

obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.




A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Institution from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the
contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases
relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Institution and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The Institution’s
revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, and the bases of incomes recognition are as
follows:

a. Interest Income

Interest income on available-for-sale assets and financial assets held at amortized cost shall be
recognized using the Institution’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of the
loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have been
derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The Institution
considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that
would be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Further, Interest income on Loans and Advances is recognized as per the guideline on recognition of
interest income, 2019 issued by NRB.

b. Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions income comprise fees and services collected on diverse ranges of services
provided by the Institution such as loan administrative, remittance and brokerage and other services.

C. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying
classification of the equity investment.
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d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all
realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading
derivatives held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships
and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.14 Interest expense

Interest expense is recognized in Profit or Loss using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate is the rates that exactly discount estimated future cash payment through expected life of the financial
instrument or where appropriate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
While calculating the effective interest rate, the Institution estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but excluding future credit gains. The calculation includes
all amount paid by the institution that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of the financial
instrument, including the transaction costs and other premium or discounts.

3.15 Fees & Commission Expenses

It includes payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the Institution such as
card related fees, guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that
are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the measurement of the
effective interest rate and are not recognized as expense under this head.

3.16 Employees Benefits/Personnel Expenses
a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions,

e paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

e profit-sharing and bonuses and

e non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:
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i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Institution pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit
or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Institution are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Institution contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Institution does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Institution’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets all actuarial are deducted.

The Institution recognizes gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in
employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Institution recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any
resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost that had not previously been
recognized.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is to be performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. However, as the Financial Institution considers the possibility of its merger
in near future and the employees liability existing at the time are to be settled for a fresh start in the new
organization, no actuarial valuation has been performed for time being as it is more beneficial for the
institution.

ii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Institution is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment
before the normal retirement date. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date,
then they are discounted to their present value.

3.17 Leases

NFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize a right to use asset and a liability for future payments arising
from a lease contract.
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Complying with the standard, the institution has recognized the future payments arising from its rental
lease contrasts as a ‘right-of-use-asset’ and an associated liability at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease liability has been initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date. The discount rate used to determine present value is the rate of
interest implicit in the lease.

=  The right-of-use-asset includes the following amounts:
= the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

= any payments made to the lessor at, or before, the commencement date of the lease, less any
lease incentives received

= any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee

= an estimate of any costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, or restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use-asset is subsequently depreciated. Depreciation is over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term, unless the title to the asset transfers at the end of the lease term, in which
case depreciation is over the useful life.

The lease liability is effectively treated as a financial liability which is measured at amortized cost, using
the rate of interest implicit in the lease as the effective interest rate.

3.18 Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost, or
year-end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of
the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

3.19 Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Institution to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under
pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds
to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Institution has not made payments at the reporting date,
those instruments are included in this financial statement as commitments.

ATHMANDU
KA NERAL

dtel i wfdidger TS b



3.20  Share Capital and Reserves

The Institution classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in
total assets of the institution after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of
the institution and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, foreign
exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, staff training and
development fund, CSR reserve etc.

3.21 Earnings per share including diluted

The Institution presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Institution by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.22  Segment Reporting

The Institution has not identified any key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations
that assist the Institution in decision process and to allocate the resources. Therefore, segment reporting
is not done by the Institution.

4. Schedules forming part of Financial Statements

Schedules are attached with financial statements.
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming_j part of the financial statements

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Cash in hand 150,378 - 2,091
Balances with BFls 66,621,557 245,098,347 114,981,271
Money at call and short notice - - -
Other - - -
Total 66,771,935 245,098,347 114,983,362
4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Statutory balances with NRB - - -
Statutory balances with BFls 12,232,926 29,666,542 22,651,882
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - - -
Total 12,232,926 29,666,542 22,651,882
4.3 Placement with Financial Institutions
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Placement with domestic Fls -
Less: Allowances for impairment -

Total -
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.5 Other trading assets

Tresury bills

Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged

Non-Pledged

4.6 Loan and advances to MFls & Cooperatives

Loans to microfinance institutions
Loans to Fis

Loans to cooperative

Less: Allowances for impairment
Other

Less: Allowances for impairment
Total

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balances at Ashad end

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment
Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advance measured at FVTPL
Interest Receivable

Total

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Product

Term loans

Short term, term loan

Long term, term loan

Hire purchase loans
Personal Residential Loans
Staff loans

Other

Sub Total
Interest Receivable
Grand Total

As at As at As at

32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
As at As at As at

32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
As at As at As at

32 Asar 2079

31 Asar 2078

31 Asar 2077

2,366,507,348

(150,214,037)

1,901,201,489

(71,796,458)

1,341,243,892

(74,307,835)

2,216,293.311

1,829,405.031

1,266,936,057

e e

17,071,416 13,720,631 27,079,763
2,233.364,727 1,843,125,662 1,294.015.819

As at As at As at

32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

113,548,538 95,176,865 79,201,653
2,225,906,312 1,732,830,188 1,191,948,542
22,035,564 68,753,927 57,992,141
5,016,934 4,440,509 12,101,556

2,366,507,348
17,071,416

1,901,201,489
13,720,631

}
}

1,341,243,892
27,079,763

2,383,578.764

1,914,922.120

1,368,323.655
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4.7.2 Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Secured
Immovable assets 459,263,274 308,908,471 119,711,729

Government guarantee

Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of Fixed Deposit receipt
Collateral Government securities

Group guarantee

1,902,227,140

1,587,852,509

1,209,430,607

Personal guarantee 5,016,934 4,440,509 12,101,556
Other collateral - - -
Subtotal 2,366,507,348 1,901,201,489 1,341,243,892

Unsecured - - -
Grand Total 2,366,507,348 1,901,201,489 1,341,243,892
4.7.3 Allowances for impairment
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 71,796,458 74,307,835 28,594,933
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 78,417,579 16,344,910 50,222,654

Recoveries/reversal during the year - (18,856,287) (4,509,752)
Write-offs - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end 150,214,037 71,796,458 74,307,835

Balance at Shrawan 1 - - -
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year - - -
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end - . B

Total allowances for impairment 150,214,037 71,796,458 74,307,835
Additional Disclosures

4.7.5 Financial Assets classification as per NFRS 7

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Financial Asssets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Assets at amortised cost 2,366,507,348 1,901,201,489 1,341,243,892
Financial Assets measured at fair value through Other

Comprehensive Income - - R

Total 2,366,507,348 1,901.201,489 1,341,243, 892

4.7.6 Collateral Disclosures (NFRS 7para 14)

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Pledged - - -
Non-Pledged 2,366,507,348 1,901,201,489 1,341,243,892
Total 2,366,507,348 1,901,201,489 1,341,243,892
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.8 Investment Securities

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments

Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
374,093 611,572 312,616
374,093 611,572 312,616
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total
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As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
374,093 611,572 312,616
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.9 Current tax assets As at As at As at
) 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 16,975,247 24,019,343 7,000,000
Tax assets of prior periods 4,985,973 8,421,262 1,421,262
Total 21,961,220 32,440,605 8,421,262.26
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 4,370,479 27,454,632 -
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - -
Total 4,370,479.43 27,454,632.15 -
Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
4.10 Investment properties
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1, ..............

Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year -

Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1, ..............

Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.11  Property and Equipment

Leasehold " . . . . . Equipment &

Properties Office Equipment Vehicles Furniture & Fixtures Machinery Others Total

Cost
As on Shrawan, 2077 - 3,597,674 3,202,214 1,563,473 - 225,781 8,589,142
Additions during the year
Acquisition - 1,556,048 407,390 856,538 - 37,005 2,856,981
Capitalization - - - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - - - -
Adjustment/ Revaluation -

Balance as on Asar end 2078 - 5,153,722 3,609,604 2,420,011 - 262,786 11,446,123
Additions during the year
Acquisition during the year - 932,306 - 1,249,398 - - 2,181,704
Capitalization - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Adjustment/ Revaluation - - - - - - -

Balance as on Asar end 2079

- 6,086,028 3,609,604 3,669,409 - 262,786 13,627,827

Depreciation and Impairment
As on Shrawan, 2077 - - .

Depreciation Charge for the Year - 1,015,835 640,666 494,724 - 60,490 2,211,714
Impairment for the year - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Others - - -

As on Asar end 2078 - 1,015,835 640,666 494,724 - 60,490 2,211,714
Depreciation charge for the Year - 1,174,627 593,788 646,737 - 50,574 2,465,726
Impairment for the year - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - - -
As on Asar end 2079 - 2,190,4(& 1,234,454 1,141,461 - 111,064 4,677,440

Capital Work in Progress - - - - - - -
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 2077 - 3,597,674 3,202,214 1,563,473 - 225,781 8,589,142
As on Asar end 2078 - 4,137,887 2,968,938 1,925,288 - 202,296 9,234,409
As on Asar end 2079 - 3895565 2,375,150 2,527,949 - 151,722 8,950,387
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

. Software
Particulars Goodwill Purchased Developed Other Total
Cost
As on Shraawan 1, 2077 - 108,738 - 16,187,166 16,295,903
Addition during the Year
Acquisition - - - 1,635,470 1,635,470
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposals during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2078 - 108,737.64 - 17,822,636.17 17,931,373.81
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition - - - 2,444,118 2,444,118
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposals during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2079 - 108,738 - 20,266,754 20,375,491
Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1, 2077 - - - - -
Amortization charge for the Year - 21,748 - 4,307,080 4,328,827
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Asar end 2078 - 21,748 - 4,307,080 4,328,827
Amortization charge for the Year - 21,748 - 5,381,305 5,403,052
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Asar end 2079 - 43,495 - 9,688,385 9,731,880
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on Asar end 2077 - 108,738 - 16,187,166 16,295,903
As on Asar end 2078 - 86,990 - 13,515,557 13,602,547
As on Asar end 2079 - 65,243 - 10,578,369 10,643,612
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4 Deferred tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

FY 2078-79

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loan and advances to customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property & Equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Employees' Leave Provision

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 31 Asar 2079

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2078
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
1,448,002 1,565,933 -
- 4,046,132
1,448,002 1,565,933 4,046,132
Current Year

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax
Assets/(Liabilities)

3,388,839
2,491,568
3,576,659

5,001,234

95,248
2,912,582

(5,001,234)

(95,248)
(2,912,582)
3,388,839
2,491,568
3,576,659

9,457,066

3,007,830

1,448,002

1,448,002
(1,565,933)
(117,931)

112,370
5,561
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FY 2077-78

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax

Previous Year
Net Deferred Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and advance to B/Fls - - -
Loan and advance to customers - 4,061,220 (4,061,220)
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - 166,492 (166,492)
Property & Equipment - 3,777,528 (3,777,528)
Employees' defined benefit plan 3,683,171 - 3,683,171
Lease Liabilities 4,333,133 - 4,333,133
Employees Leave Provision 1,554,869 - 1,554,869
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 9,571,173 8,005,240 1,565,933
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 31 Asar, 2078 (Closing) 1,565,933
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2077 (Opening) 4,046,132
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 5,612,065
Deferred tax expensel/(income) recognised in profit or loss (5,701,752)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income 89,687
Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity -
FY 2076-77
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and advance to B/Fls - - -
Loan and advance to customers - 8,061,101 (8,061,101)
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - 76,805 (76,805)
Property & Equipment - 4,925,539 (4,925,539)
Employees' defined benefit plan 2,885,200 - 2,885,200
Lease Liabilities 4,856,150 - 4,856,150
Employee Leave Provision 1,275,964 - 1,275,964
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 9,017,313 13,063,445 (4,046,132)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 31 Asar, 2077 (Closing) (4,046,132)
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2076 (Opening) (1,646,617)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (5,692,749)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 5,615,944
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income 76,805
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity -
Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
4.14 Other Assets
As at As at As at
Other Assets
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Asset Held for Sale - - -
Other non banking assets - - -
Bills receivable - - -
Accounts receivable 10,149,955 5,519,673 6,269,914
Accrued income - - -
Prepayments and Deposit 775,722.00 590,336 646,469.00
Deferred employee expenditure 400,637 183,229 209,426
Other 2,559,420 1,555,360 947,741
Total 13,885,735 7,848,598 8,073,551
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.15 Due to Banks and Financial Institutions
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Borrowing from National BFls 1,163,673,758 1,087,910,900 527,913,666.29
Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Other - -
Total 1,163,673,758 1,087,910,900 527,913,666
4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Refinance from NRB - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Lender of last resort facility from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreement - -
Other payable to NRB - -
Total - - -
Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
s L As at As at As at
4.17 Derivative financial instruments 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract
Other

Total
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

419 Borrowing

As at As at As at

Particulars 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government - - -
Other Licensed Institution - - -
Other - - -

Subtotal - - -

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - -
Other Institutions -

Sub total -

Total - - -

4.20 Provisions
As at As at As at

Particulars 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Provisions for redundancy - - -
Provision for restructuring - - -
Provision for Employee Training - - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - -
Onerous contracts - - -
Other - - -

Total - - -

4.20.1 Movement in provision

As at As at As at

Particulars 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year - - -
Provisions used during the year - - -
Provisions reversed during the year - - -
Unwind of discount - - -

Balance at Asar end - - -
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.18 Deposits from customers
Particulars As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Institutions customers: - - -
Term deposits - - -
Call deposits - - -
Other - - -
Individual customers: 824,535,981 618,999,445 599,822,949
Term deposits 978,000 1,093,286 1,117,295
Saving deposits 823,557,981 617,906,159 598,705,654
Savings from Members - - -
Other - - -
Total 824,535,981 618,999,445 599,822,949
4.18.1 Currency Wise Analysis of Deposit from Customer
. As at As at
Particulars As a32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Nepalese rupee 824,535,981 618,999,445 599,822,949
Indian rupee - - -
United States Dollar - - -
Great Britain Pound - - -
Euro - - -
Japanese Yen - - -
Chinese yuan - - -
Other - - -
Total 824,535,981 618,999,445 599,822,949
Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
4.21 Other Liabilities
As at As at As at
Particulars 32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 12,277,236 9,617,332
Liability for long-service leave 5,182,897 4,253,212
Short-term employee benefits 8,874 232,156
Bills payable 774,464 266,322
Creditors and accruals 145,260 145,260
Interest payable on deposit 63,029,862 1,952,241
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -
Employee bonus payable 10,349,895 -
Audit Fee Payable 139,375 111,500
Employee Welfare Fund 2,009,817 26,177,656
Employee Health Fund 968,792 1,087,051
Organization Development Fund 11,718,369 12,718,369
Srijana Samudayak Bikas Kendra 100,024,765 100,024,765
Lease Liability 14,443,777 16,187,166
Other 2,807,540 574,624
Total 154,214,389 223,880,925 173,347,654
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.22 Debt securities issued

Particulars

Debt securities issued designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortized cost

Total

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars

Redeemable preference shares

As at
32 Asar 2079

As at
31 Asar 2078

As at
31 Asar 2077

As at
32 Asar 2079

As at
31 Asar 2078

As at
31 Asar 2077

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilites

component)
Other

Total
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.24

4.24.1

4.24.2

Share Capital

Ordinary Shares

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Total

Ordinary Shares

Authorised capital
2,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each

Issued capital
1,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each

Subscribed and paid up capital
700,000 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each
Total

Ordinary share ownership

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions

Other

Domestic ownership (Public)
Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions

Other

Foreign ownership promoter
Foreign ownership public

Total

e arftfe ufddcer

As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
46,700,000 46,700,000 46,700,000
13,300,000 13,300,000 13,300,000
70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

4.26.2.1 List of shareholder holding 0.5% or more shares

This Year Previous Year
S.N. Shareholders name
% Amount NPR % Amount NPR
1 Shrijan Samudayak Biskas Kendra 66.71%| 46,700,000 66.71%| 46,700,000
2 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 14.29%] 10,000,000 14.29%] 10,000,000
3 Lilanath Shrestha 4.29% 3,000,000 4.29% 3,000,000
4 Shyam Kumar Shrestha 0.71% 500,000 0.71% 500,000
5 Ram Dayal Shrestha 0.57% 400,000 0.57% 400,000
6 Pradip Kumar Shrestha 2.14% 1,500,000 2.14% 1,500,000
7 Motilal Shrestha 2.14% 1,500,000 2.14% 1,500,000
8 Ambika Devi Shrestha 1.14% 800,000 1.14% 800,000
9 Neebha Shrestha 1.00% 700,000 1.00% 700,000
10 Batuk Samsher Shrestha 1.00% 700,000 1.00% 700,000
Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
4.25 Reserves
Particulars As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077
Statutory general reserve 58,442,743 58,442,743 45,294,834
Capital reserve - - -
Exchange equalization reserve - - -
Investment adjustment reserve - - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 611,726 658,026 631
Client Protection Fund 44,080,127 44,717,420 44,790,278
Capital redemption reserve - - -
Regulatory reserve 11,949,990 9,604,442 18,955,834
Assets revaluation reserve - - -
Fair value reserve 317,493 554,972 256,016
Dividend equalization reserve - - -
Actuarial gain - - -
Special reserve - - -
Other reserve - - -
Total 115,402,080 113,977,603 109,297,594
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

426  Contingent liabilities and commitments

Bank
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Contingent liabilities - - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - -
Capital commitment - - -
Lease Commitment - - -
Litigation - - -
Others - - }

Total - - -

4.26.1 Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial statements

Bank
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Capital commitments in relation to Property

and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - -

Sub total - - -

Capital commitments in relation to

Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - -

Sub total - - -

Total - - -
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4.26.2 Lease commitments

Bank
As at As at As at
32 Asar 2079 31 Asar 2078 31 Asar 2077

Operating lease commitments - - -
Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the - - -
institution is lessee
Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years - - -

Sub total - - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non

cancellable operating lease, where the

institution is lessee - - -

Not later than 1 year - - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years - - -

Sub total - - -

Grand total - - -

4.26.3 Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for ligitation contingent liabilities as per their own case of each institution.
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Shrijanshil Laighubitta Bittiya sanstha Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079 (July 16, 2022)

511  Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs
5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity

NPR
As at 31 Ashar 2078
Particulars Explanatory A?I)az:t?o??rr:::irt‘izg)" (End of last period As at 32 Ashar
Note presented under 2079
previous GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP 146,353,825 211,363,115 205,929,923
Adjustments under NFRSs:

Impairment on loan and advances -

Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan -

Lease accounting 1 - (928,221) (1,343,826)

Measurement of investment securities at fair value 256,016 554,972 317,493

Revaluation of property & equipment 2 - 254,606 711,776

Recognition of investment property

Amortization of debt securities issued

Deferred tax 3 (5,476,467) (16,789) 151,247

Defined benefit obligation of employees

Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

Interest income 4 27,079,763 13,720,631 17,071,416
Total Adjustment to equity 21,859,312 13,585,199 16,908,106
Total Equity under NFRSs 168,213,138 224,948,313 222,838,029

Explanatory note:
1. Lease Accounting

Under previous GAAP, contractual payments under lease rental agreements were expensed to Statemetn of Compheresnsive Income. Under NFRS 16, the financial
institution has recognized a right to use asset and a liability for future payments arising from a lease contract. The impact on equity has been explained below:

Particulars (16-Jul-2020) (15-Jul-2021) (15-Jul-2022)

Lease Liability as on Year End (16,187,166) (14,443,777) (11,922,195)
Right to Use Asset as on Year end 16,187,166 13,515,557 10,578,369
Net Increase in Equity (928,221) (1,343,826)

1. Fair Valuation of Investments in Equity Shares

Under previous GAAP, investmetns in equity shares were vaued at cost. As per NFRS, they have been fair valued through Other Compherensive Income:

Particulars (16-Jul-2020) (15-Jul-2021) (15-Jul-2022)
Revaluation (Loss)/Gain 256,016 554,972 317,493
Net Increase/(decrease) in equity. 256,016 554,972 317,493
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Shrijanshil Laighubitta Bittiya sanstha Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079 (July 16, 2022)

5.11  Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs
5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity
3. Revaluation of property and equipment

Under previous GAAP, plant and machinary were depreciated using certain rate. Under NFRS, the bank assess the useful life of the plant and machinary and
depreciating the same on Diminishing Balance Method. The impact on equity has been explained below:

Particulars

(16-Jul-2020)

(15-Jul-2021)

(15-Jul-2022)

Traferred to retained earnings (for plant and machinary used for useful life)

Excess depreciation charged under previous GAAP now reversed

254,606

711,776

Revaluation of fixed assets

Net Increase in Equity

254,606

711,776

4. Deferred tax

impact of defined benefit obligation. Below are the imapct on equities.

Under NFRS, deferred tax are mainly created due to accrual interest income booking , reversal of loan loss provision, reversal of investment and acturial valution

Particulars (16-Jul-2020) (15-Jul-2021) (15-Jul-2022)

Addition on DTA as per NFRS (5,476,467) (16,789) 151,247
DTL created on grauity -
Accrued income DTA decrease -
Net decrease in Equity (5,476,467) (16,789) 151,247

5. Interest Receivable

Under GAAP, the Financial Institution recognized interest income on Cash basis as per requirement of NRB directives. However, under NFRS interest income is
recognized on accrual basis. Thus, arises the Accrued Interest with necessary recognization of income. However, accrued interest on some restricted loans which is
assumed to be irrecoverable in the foreseeable future has not been recognized as income.

(15-Jul-2022)

Net increase in Equity

Particulars (16-Jul-2020) (15-Jul-2021)
Accrued Interest 27,079,763 13,720,631 17,071,416
27,079,763 13,720,631 17,071,416
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.27

Interest Income

Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 836,679.58 2,041,617
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 327,527,671 228,781,758
Investment securities - -
Loan and advances to staff 332,511 589,889
Other - -
Total interest income 328,696,861 231,413,264

4.28 Interest Expense

Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions 133,302,184 32,341,966
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 36,844,715 62,557,812
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 1,762,735 1,699,382
Total interest expense 171,909,634 96,599,160

4.29

Fees and Commission Income

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan administration fees

Service fees

Commitment fees

Credit issuance fees

Prepayment and swap fees
Remittance fees

Brokerage fees

Other fees and commission income

28,634,566

35,293,653

Total fees and Commission Income

28,634,566
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4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Current Year Previous Year

Brokerage - -
ATM management fees - -
VISA Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission fees - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense 18,633 80,038

Total fees and Commission Expense 18,633 80,038

4.31 Net Trading Income

Current Year Previous Year

Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - -
Other - -

Net trading income - R

4.32  Other Operating Income

Current Year Previous Year
Foreign exchange revauation gain - N
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other - -

Total - R

4.33  Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

Current Year Previous Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls 78,417,578.96 (2,511,377)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total 78,417,579 (2,511,377.14)

1RIANDU
KATHANDU )
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4.34

4.35

4.35.1

Personnel Expenses

Current Year

Previous Year

Salary 55,498,659 48,835,899
Allowances 10,587,690 7,596,802
Gratuity expense - 2,836,124
Provident fund 4,028,993 1,025,949
Uniform 1,530,000 1,171,044
Training & development expense 2,521,038 1,364,394
Leave encashment 3,340,737 1,261,213
Medical 6,100 -

Insurance 2,375,420 1,792,024
Employees incentive - -

Cash-settled share-based payments - -

Pension expense - -

Finance expense under NFRS 38,182 158,253
Other expenses related to staff 543,097 370,876
Subtotal 80,469,916 66,412,578
Employees bonus - 10,337,976
Grand total 80,469,916 76,750,554

Other Operating Expenses

Current Year

Previous Year

Directors' fee 197,500 240,000
Directors' expense 27,695 173,600
Auditors' remuneration 282,500 282,500
Other audit related expense 94,112 111,333
Professional and legal expense 10,000 103,862
Office administration expense 11,878,424 7,065,466
Operating lease expense - -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense - -
Client Protection expenses - -
Onerous lease provisions - -
Software Expenses 2,397,557 1,993,592
Share Issue Expenses 450,750 -
Other - 268,606
Total 15,338,538 10,238,960

Office Administration Expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Water and electricity 943,119 676,752
Repair and maintenance 615,597 503,550
Insurance 388,777 395,959
Postage,telex, telephone, fax 1,278,958 582,623
Printing and stationery 1,506,713 1,528,413
News paper, books and journals 7,200 5,900
Advertisement 201,620 232,190
Donations - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium - -
Travelling allowance and expenses 3,114,082 1,412,196
Entertainment 183,127.00 111,690.00
Annual/special general meeting expense 198,492.00 152,064.00
Other

Non-Durable Goods 91,544.04 375,960.00
Registration & Renewal 203,564.09 629,341.00
Fuel expenses 2,932,426.00 -
Office Maintenance & Janatorial Expenses 204,950.00 154,447.00
Covid Response Expenses 8,255.00 304,383.00
Other - -
Total 11,878,424 7,065,466
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4.36 Depreciation & Amortization

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.39.1

Current Year

Previous Year

Depreciation on property and equipment 2,465,726 2,211,714
Depreciation on investment property - -

Amortization of intangible assets 5,403,052 4,328,827
Total 7,868,779 6,540,541

Non Operating Income

Current Year

Previous Year

Recovery of loan written off
Other income

Total

Non Operating Expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring
Other expense

Total

Income tax expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Current tax expense 4,379,631 27,454,632
Current year 4,370,479 27,454,632
Adjustments for prior years 9,152 -
Deferred tax expense (117,931) 5,612,065
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (117,931) 5,612,065
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 4,261,700 33,066,697

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit before tax 3,308,349 79,009,041
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 992,505 23,702,712
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 850,902 378,364
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (924,833) 3,373,556
Total income tax expense 918,575 27,454,632
Effective tax rate 28% 35%
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Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079
(As per NRB Regulation)

Current Year

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (1,183,652)
Appropriations:
a. General reserve -
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund -
c. Capital redemption reserve -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund -
e. Employees' training fund -
[ Client Protection Fund -

g. Fair Value Reserve 237,479.00
Profit or (loss) befor regulatory adjustment (946,173)
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (11,949,991.17)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) -
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 117,931
[ Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) -

i. Other (1/-)

Distributable profit or (loss) (12,778,233)

| /)

Previous Year

57,256,161

(13,147,909)

(657,395)
(657,395.43)
(298,956.00)

42,494,505

(9,604,442)
(5,612,065)
0
0

27,277,999

KATHRIANDU
NEPA
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5. Disclosures & Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management

Risk is inherent in the Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The Institution is mainly exposed
to;

e Liquidity Risk

e Interest Rate Risk
e Credit Risk

e Operational Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Institution’s
risk management framework. Risk management committee has been established to facilitate focused
oversight of various risks. The committee reviews the risk management policies as well as the
Institution’s compliance with NRB Directives.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Institution will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity
risk arises because of the possibility that the Institution might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances.

Liquidity has been actively monitored at an appropriate frequency. Routine reporting, trend analysis,
budget variance analysis was in place to the Board of Directors through Assets Labilities Management
Committee (ALCO) and Risk Management Committee. Daily MIS, daily liquidity sheet, CRR report and
monthly liquidity gap report have been used for the insight of liquidity risk information to the
management.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price.
Our exposure to interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The
Institution focuses on risk management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by
NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The
interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market rate risk set by ALCO.

Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit
obtained from Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which
has been used by Institution, includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of
borrowers’ background, business and experience, financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector
wise analysis etc.
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error,
fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or lead to financial loss.

Effective operational risk management system aims to minimize losses and customer dissatisfaction due
to failure in processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Institution to
losses due to fraud, analyzing the impact of failures in technology/system, developing plans to meet
external shocks that can adversely impact continuity in the Institution’s operations. The Institution needs
“a comprehensive operational risk monitoring and reporting framework™ as well as “output checking” at
all branches covering all transactions on daily basis to minimize operational risk.

One of the growing risks among others these days is Operation Risk that arises out of inefficient
processes and people inside and outside the Institution. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
is the management committee where operation risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line
with ALM Policy. IT Department in the Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with
IT Policy of the Institution. The Institution needs to conduct an IS Audit to ensure the effectiveness of
implemented controls framework and adequacy of the adopted security plan and procedures.

The Institution has separate department to oversee operation risk including compliance of KYC and
AML. This department is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report,
operational processes and right to recommend the changes in the system and procedures.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and
liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and
liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the
objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an
orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price at the
measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).
Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level-1 inputs

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. Held for trading investments and quoted securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through OCI have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level-2 inputs

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Such observable inputs include:

=  Quoted price for similar instruments in active market
=  Quoted price for identical or similar instruments in inactive market
= Financial instruments are valued using models where all significant inputs are observable
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Level-3 inputs

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements are derived
using valuation techniques in which current market transactions or observable market data are not
available. Under this, instruments are fair valued using valuation models which have been tested against
prices or inputs to actual market transactions and make use of the best estimates of the most appropriate
model assumptions. The institution has used latest audited financial statements to arrive at book value
for investment in unquoted shares.

5.2 Capital Management
5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures

Capital is very crucial component in a business. In case of Financial Institutions, sufficient capital needs
to be maintained for business growth. Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a
strong capital base to support the business growth and to meet the regulatory capital requirements.
Capital planning is an integral part of the Institution’s strategic plan. The Financial Institution has robust
capital planning and management to meet its projected growth over the upcoming years during the
normal as well as stressed situations. The Institution ensures that adequate level of capital is maintained
at all times. It is well capitalized and is able to maintain required capital through internal generation and
also through other sources, if required.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components
S.N. | Particulars Amount (NPR ¢000)
A | Paid up Capital 70,000.00
B | Share Premium / Capital Reserve -
C | Proposed Bonus Shares -
D | Statutory General Reserve 58,442.74
E | Retained Earnings 37,435.95
F | Current Year Cumulative Profit -
G | Capital Redemption Reserve -
H | Other Free Reserves -
I Less: Goodwill -
J Less: Deferred Tax Assets (1,448.00)
K | Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests (374.09)
L | Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized -
M | Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending -
Core (Tier-1) Capital 1,64,056.60
ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR ¢000)
A | General Loan Loss Provision 40,510.84
B | Exchange Equalization Reserve -
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iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

b)

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR ¢000)

C | Investment Adjustment Reserve -

D Other Reserves -

Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 40,510.84

Deductions from capital
Only deferred tax asset has been deducted from capital.

Total qualifying capital

S. N. Particulars Amount (NPR ¢000)
A Core Capital 1,64,056.60
B Supplementary Capital 40,510.84
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 2,04,567.43
Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Institution as at 16 July 2022 stood as:

S.N. Particulars Current Year
A Total Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 6.42%
B Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposure 8.01%

Summary of Financial Institution’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable

The Institution does not have any internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support current
and future activities.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Institution has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR.
100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Institution, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Institution after
distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

S.N. Risk Weighted Exposure Amount (NPR ¢000)
A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 24,30,756.90
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 1,24,210.23
C Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -

Adjustments under Pillar 11
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5.3

S.N. | Risk Weighted Exposure Amount (NPR “000)
Add 3% of the total RWE due to non-compliance to disclosure )
requirement
Add ...% of the total deposit due to insufficient liquid assets -

Total Risk Weighted Exposure 25,54,967.13

Compliance with external requirement

The Institution is required by the Directive to Microfinance Institutions issued by NRB to attain a
stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 10 Crore. As on the reporting date, the Institution’s paid up
capital stands at 7 Crore. However, the institution has issued its ordinary shares (IPO) to public during
Bhadra 2079 i.e. after the reporting date making total paid up capital of 10.9375 Crore.

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.3.1 Classification-Financial Assets

5.4

Fair Value | Fair Value
. . Amortized Through Through
Financial Assets Cost o CIg Profit /Lgoss Total
(FVTOCI) (FVTPL)
Cash and Cash equivalent 6,67,71,935 - - 6,67,71,935
Statutory Balances & Due from NRB 1,22,32,926 - - 1,22,32,926
Placement with BFIs - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 2,23,33,64,727 - - 2,23,33,64,727
Investment Securities - 3,74,093.00 - 3,74,093
Current Tax Assets 2,19,61,220 - - 2,19,61,220
Other Assets 1,38,85,735 - - 1,38,85,735
Total Financial Assets 2,34,82,16,543 3,74,093 - 2,34,85,90,636

Financials Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

1,16,36,73,758

1,16,36,73,758

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instrument

Deposits from Customers 82,45,35,981 - - 82,45,35,981
Borrowing - - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 43,70,479 - - 43,70,479
Other Liabilities 15,42,14,389 - - -
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,14,67,94,607 - - 1,99,25,80,218

Segment Analysis

The Institution has not identified any key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations
that assist the Institution in decision process and to allocate the resources. Therefore, segment reporting
is not done by the Institution.
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55 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment
5.5.1 Contingent liabilities

Where the Institution undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued,
such as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Institution’s transaction
banking business for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those
are included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of
customers to customs, for bids or offers.

The Institution does not have any Contingent Liability as on the reporting date.

5.5.2 Commitments

Where the Institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a
customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of
credit and the Institution has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in
these financial statements as commitments.

The Institution does not have any Commitments as on the reporting date.
Explanatory Notes

The Institution seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to
regulatory actions and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can be
material to the Institution.

In addition to these matters, the Institution may receive legal claims against it in the normal course of
business. The Institution considers none of these claims as material. Where appropriate, the Institution
recognizes a provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of economic resources
embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the
obligation(s).

5.6 Related Party Disclosures
5.6.1 Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel of the Institution including members of the Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and other executive level staffs, as follows:

Name Designation
Raj Kumar Shrestha Chairman
Renuka Kumari Shrestha Director
Niva Shrestha Director
Surendra Keshar Amatya Independent Director
Batuk Shamsher Shrestha Chief Executive Officer
Sushil Kumar Singh Deputy CEO
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5.6.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

5.6.5

5.6.6

5.6.7

5.7

5.8

5.9

Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and Restricted Lending
The Institution has not extended any loans to Related Parties during the year.
Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:

The Institution has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

Transaction with Board of Director of the Financial Institution

Amount in NPR.
Nature of Transaction Current Year
Meeting Allowances (including committee meeting fee) 297,500.00
Meeting Expenses, Telephone, Mobile & Newspapers/Magazines 27,695.00

Remuneration and facilities to Chief Executive Officer of the Financial Institution

Categories Chief Executive Officer
a) Salary & Allowances 16,10,396.00

b) Annual Leaves including sick leave Yes

c) Bonus as per Bonus Act Yes

d) Gratuity, Provident Fund, Medical Benefit Yes

Transactions with substantial shareholder

The Institution doesn’t have any transactions with substantial shareholder.

Management and Technical Service Agreement (TSA)

The Institution does not have any Management and Technical Service Agreement (TSA).
Merger and Acquisition

There are no merger or acquisitions transaction during the year.

Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities

The Institution doesn’t have any Subsidiary(s) as on the reporting date. Hence, there are no such entities
which are required to be consolidated but not done during the year.

Events after reporting date

The Institution monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and /
or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the
books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with
possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.
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There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2022 till the signing of this
financial statement.

5.10 First Time Adoption reconciliations and disclosures

NFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of Nepal Financials Reporting Standards) provides a suitable starting point
for accounting in accordance with NFRS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time
adopters.

The Institution has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan,
2077 (17 July 2020) (the transition date) by:

recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,
b. not recognizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS,

c. reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to NFRS as
required under NFRS, and

d. applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.
5.10.1 Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past

Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal
Accounting Standards and directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank) and the adoption of NFRS has been
disclosed in the respective segments, including the impact.

5.10.2 Reconciliation of total equity

Amounts in NPR

As at 01 As at 31 Asar 2078
Particulars Explanatory Shrawan 2077 (End of last period As at 32 Asar
Note (Date of presented under 2079
Transition) previous GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP 14,63,53,825 21,13,63,115 20,59,29,923

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances - - -
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan - - -
Lease accounting (9,28,221) (13,43,826)
Measurement of investment securities at fair value 2,56,016 5,54,972 3,17,493
Revaluation of property & equipment - 2,54,606 4,57,171
Recognition of investment property - - -
Amortization of debt securities issued - - -
Deferred tax (54,76,467) (16,789) 1,51,247
Defined benefit obligation of employees - - -
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain - - -
Interest income 2,70,79,763 1,37,20,631 1,70,71,416

Total Adjustment to equity 2,18,59,312 1,35,85,199 1,69,08,106

Total Equity under NFRSs 16,82,13,138 22,49,48,313 22,28,38,029

Explanatory note:

1. Lease Accounting

Under previous GAAP, contractual payments under lease rental agreements were expensed to Statement of Comprehensive Income. Under
NFRS 16, the financial institution has recognized a right to use asset and a liability for future payments arising from a lease contract. The impact

on equity has been explained below:

Particulars

(16-Jul-2020)

(15-Jul-2021)

(15-Jul-2022)

Lease Liability as on Year End

(1,61,87,166)

(1,44,43,777)

(1,19,22,195)

Right to Use Asset as on Year end

1,61,87,166

1,35,15,557

1,05,78,369

Net Increase in Equity

9,28,221)

(13,43,826)
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Government of Nepal
Ministry of Industry, Commerce & Supplies

) Office of the Company Registrar __ ..«
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF COMPANY
This Certificate of Incciporation has been issued to
M/s Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Public Limited having incorporated it on the 24 day of Gctober, 2018 pursuaut to
sub-section (1) of section 5 of the Companies Act, 20006.
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k £251 Date: 2018-10-24 Asst. Registrar
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